Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
December 11, 2012

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, December 11, 2012 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioners Tim Fowler, Charles Salter, Eber
Warren, and Larry Whorton.

MEMBERS ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: Michael Dorsey, Dennis Humenik and Cathy Hurm — Town Manager

Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for discussion regarding any revision to the proposed agenda.
Commissioner Warren motioned to accept the agenda as presented. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Warren made a motion to accept the minutes from the November 13, 2012
meeting. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter opened the floor for Public Comments:

Michael Dorsey, Director of the South Lake Property Owners Association (SLPOA), residing at
592 Country Club Drive West, and representing the South Lake Property Owners Association,
requested to address the board regarding two items. Mr. Dorsey stated that the first item was that
SLPOA respectfully requested that the Board of Commissioners (BoC) change the PUD zoning
designation for the west side of South Lake to an R-15 zoning designation. Mr. Dorsey stated
that the deadline has elapsed for the owner/developer of that property to submit any plans for the
PUD development. Mr. Dorsey said he believed it had been eight years since approval had been
given for a PUD overlay for development of the property. Mr. Dorsey said the developer had
been given a time limit to present a final plan, which was extended by the Governor, and he
believed that time limit has expired. In view of this, he advised that the SLPOA had felt it would
be prudent to restore the R-15 designation so it would not be susceptible to high density
development. Mr. Dorsey then relayed, as he knew/recalled, some of the history regarding the
property. Followed was a discussion among the BoC and Mr. Dorsey regarding the Permit
Extension Act of 2009 adopted by the NC General Assembly August 5, 2009 which extended

the life of “development approvals” until December 31, 2010 and the Minnesott Beach Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO) as they related to the development in question. Commissioner
Whorton noted there were several issues which needed to have been addressed prior to the
developer receiving approval and the developer never came back and submitted a final plan.
Commissioner Whorton expressed his concerns regarding what the effects may be on the

1/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
December 11, 2012

marina property and the lake property if the PUD is changed. Commissioner Warren commented
regarding the county water lines and the difference of an R-15 and an R-20, as they would
impact upon wells and septic systems. Mayor Potter questioned if a preliminary plat had been
approved to which Commissioner Whorton said that as he recalled, in January 2008 a
preliminary plat was approved with two conditions, the conditions were not met and the plat was
rejected. Mayor Potter read the section from the UDO regarding submission of plats and
expressed an opinion that the deadline for submitting plat plans had expired. It was decided that
further research needed to be conducted to determine the status of the property and which
regulations should or could be applied before any action could be taken.

Mr. Dorsey then moved to the second issue of the SLPOA which was a request for the BoC to
take action to correct and improve the drainage conditions in and around the culvert located
under Country Club Drive West in the vicinity of 458 Country Club Drive West. Mr. Dorsey
stated that he was aware that the BoC was working on the town's drainage systems and inquired
regarding the status of this particular issue as there were concerns about the integrity of the road.
Commissioner Fowler advised that a survey had been completed by an engineer and is available
for anyone who wants to review the study. Commissioner Fowler noted that particular issue is
Project No. 9 which contained a note from the engineer as follows: “Our analysis indicated this
issue is not being created by town owned property, the road. It appears to be a redeposit of
sediment being scoured from the upper dam spillway discharge.” Commissioner Fowler
clarified that it is a problem from the dam at the golf course hole No. 10. Mr. Dorsey asked if
the association (SLPOA) would be responsible for talking with the Country Club. Mayor Potter
explained the water flow for the town and how this area was a natural drain way for the town
from Hwy. 306 to the lake. Mayor Potter added that issue of easements regarding this area
would have to be researched, before any actions could be taken by either the town or the
SLPOA, to determine the status of the drain way. Commissioner Fowler noted there was an
estimate from the engineer of about $16,000 to correct the matter. Mayor Potter stated these
concerns would be taken under advisement and researched.

Mayor Potter moved on to the Town Manager's Report:

Ms. Hurm advised of the following:

Zoning permits were issued since the last meeting for the following :
11/19/2012 Arlington Place Cottages, 999A Mill Creek Drive, Lot 62E
11/27/2012 Frank Ormond, 100 Country Club Drive, Shed

Three loads of reject gravel had been obtained and placed on the driveways and parking lot.

2/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
December 11, 2012

The Town Clerk position is being advertised with a projected date of filling the position after
January 1%.

Commissioner Fowler asked if more reject gravel would be needed and was advised that more
could be used but we were going to hold off on that until gravel which had been applied could be
better leveled.

Mayor Potter then moved on to unfinished business:

Commissioner Fowler provided an update regarding the status of the drainage contract.
Commissioner Fowler advised that he and the Mayor had met with C.T. Clayton and walked on
Phillips Drive to address questions/concerns that Mr. Clayton had expressed at the previous
meeting. They discussed different options and Mr. Clayton was going to go back and redraw
some of the options. Commissioner Fowler noted that no action was required at this time and the
update was being provided for informational purposes.

Commissioner Fowler provided the information requested at the previous meeting regarding
yearly operational cost, not including fuel, for a small pick-up truck for the town which was as
follows: safety inspection $13.60; insurance (liability, uninsured motorist, hired or borrowed
comprehensive & collision) approx. $200.00; and application for permanent registration plate
(one time cost) $15.00. Commissioner Fowler moved that $8,000.00 be approved for the
purchase of a small truck for use by the town. Commissioner Whorton expressed concern that
the amount of use of a small truck by the town would not justify the expense. Further discussion
was held regarding how a small truck could be used. Mayor Potter stated there should be further
clarification of how the truck would be used and the necessary size. Commissioner Warren
questioned the need for the larger truck if a smaller truck was obtained and was advised the
larger truck is used for hauling large amounts in times of emergency as well as town cleanup.
The Mayor asked for further discussion, there being none, the motion was put to a vote with
Commissioners Fowler and Salter voting Aye and Commissioners Warren and Whorton voting
Nay. Mayor Potter cast the deciding vote of Nay. Motion failed.

Commissioner Fowler gave the final report on the November 8 — 9, 2012 town cleanup.
Commissioner Fowler noted the final cost was $1,329.73, a difference of $139.13 less than noted
on the preliminary report due to the difference in the projected and actual dumping fee.
Commissioner Fowler said there was no action required as this was just for information.

3/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
December 11, 2012

Mayor Potter then moved to New Business:

Commissioner Warren presented the audit report for fiscal year ending 6/30/12. There were
some questions as to how some items were labeled and it was requested that a representative
from the auditing firm come to the next meeting to address these questions. Other than
requesting a representative to attend the next meeting, there was no further action on this matter
at this time, only information.

Commissioner Warren then requested authorization to transfer funds as follows:

Transfer funds in the amount of $100.00 from 414 Insurance & Bonds to 432 Truck Insurance
which would result in budget amounts as noted; 414 Insurance & Bonds — Budgeted $4,400.00,
Actual Expenses to date $3655.75, Balance $744.25; 432 Truck Insurance — Budgeted $600.00,
Actual Expenses to date $557.22, Balance $42.78.

Transfer funds in the amount of $2,000.00 from 400 Clerk Salary to 433 Contract which would
result in budget amounts as noted; 400 Clerk Salary — Budgeted $19,615.00, Actual Expense to
date $7,120.61, Balance $12,494.39; 433 Contract — Budgeted $3,000.00, Actual Expense to
date $1,125.00, Balance $1875.00. Commissioner Warren made a motion to approve the transfer
of funds as noted. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter then moved to the Commissioner Reports:

Commissioner Warren provided the budget report for the period ending November 30, 2012
which reflected the following: First Citizens Checking, $4,391.88; First Citizens Savings,
$197,040.04; North Carolina Management Trust, $200,510.66; First South Bank Savings,
$104,586.03; and First South Bank CD, $20,390.00.

Miscellaneous Information: None

Commissioner Whorton motioned to adjourn. All ayes. Motion passed.

/ B 7
AU A7 2.5 f /ﬁ/(,/iya

/Catherine Hurm, Town Manager/Clerk

4/4



